E— - RAJESH J. SHAH & ASSOCIATES -

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To
The Members of Ratnatris Pharmaceuticals Private Limited
(Formerly known as “Ratnamani Healthcare Private Limited”)

Report on the audit of the financial statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Ratnatris Pharmaceuticals Private Limited.
(formerly known as Ratnamani Healthcare Pyt Ltd.) (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as
at March 31, 2025; the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date and notes
to the financial statements, including a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory
information (hereinafter referred to as the “financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesald financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards
prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, its loss, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year
ended on that date.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards on auditing (“SA”s) specified under section 143
(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the code of ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(“ICAI”) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements
under the provisions of the Act and the rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's code of ethics. We believe that the
audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit apinion on the
financial statements. !

Other matter

The Comparative financial information of the company for the year ended March 31, 2025 included in
these financial statements, are based on the previously issued financial statements prepared in accordance
with the Companies (Accounting standards) Rules, 2006 audited by us and our reports for the years ended
March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 dated 14™ May,2025 and 27'" May, 2024 respectively expressed an
unmodified opinion on those financial statements, as adjusted for the differences in the accounting
principles adopted by the Company an transition to the Ind AS, which have been audited by us.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matter,
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Ratnatris Pharmaceuticals Private Limited

information other than the financial statements and auditors’ report thereon

The Company’s board of directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Board’s Report including Annexures to Board's
Report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the financial statements

The Company’s board of directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134 (5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance, including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows
of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India.
This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS
financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The board of directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

° |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control,

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management,

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as a going concern,

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasanably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such commur@ﬂg
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Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

1, As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give
in the Annexure “A”, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the
extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those hooks;

{(c) The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss including Other Comprehensive
Income, Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this report are in agreement with the
books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under
section 133 of the Act;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2025 taken on record by the board of directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
report in “Annexure B.” Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and
operating effectiveness of the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting;

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the
best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

(i) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigation on its financial position
in its financial statements - Refer Note 37 to the financial statements;

(i) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;

(iiiy There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company;

(a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have
been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources of kind of funds)by-the.company to or in any

Page 4 of 13




Rajesh J. Shah & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Independent Auditor's Report (Continued)
Ratnatris Pharmaceuticals Private Limited
other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have
heen received by the company from any person{s) or entity(ies) including
foreign entities (“Funding Parties”) with the understanding, whether recorded
in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, Directly or indirectly, lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or
on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(c) Based on such audit procedures that the auditor has considered reasonable
and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to their notice that
has caused them to believe that the representations under sub-clause(i) and
(ii) contain any material misstatement.

{v) During the year no dividend was declared or paid. Hence, compliance under Section
123 of the companies Act, 2013 is not applicable; and

(vi) Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used an
accounting software for maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended
March 31, 2025 which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the
same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the
software. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any
instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with.

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from
1st April 2023, reporting under Rule 11 (g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 on preservation of audit trail as per the statutory requirements for
record retention is not applicable for the year ended as on 31* March, 2025,

Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 108407W

CA Jimit R. Shah

Partner

Membership No.: 163920
UDIN : 25163920BMHULLEESS

Place: Ahmedabad
Date: 14-05-2025
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ANNEXURE “A” to the Independent Auditor’s Report

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our
report of even date)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the company and the books and
records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we state
that: -

(i) (a) (A) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment, capital work-in--
progress and relevant details of right-of-use assets.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible
assets.

(b) Some of the Property, Plant and Equipment, capital work-in-progress and right-of-use
assets were physically verified during the year by the management in accordance with a
program of verification, which in our opinion provides for physical verification of all the
Property, Plant and Equipment, capital work-in-progress and right-of-use assets at
reasonable intervals having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its
activities. According to the information and explanations given to us no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) According to the Information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties (other
than immovable properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are
duly executed in favour of the lessee) disclosed in the financial statements are held in the
name of the Company.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property,
plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets) or intangible assets or both during the
year.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending
against the Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benam|
Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

(i) (a) The inventories were physically verified by the management during the year at reasonable
intervals. In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the
frequency of such verification is reasonable and procedures and coverage as followed by
management is appropriate having regard to size of the Company and the nature of its
operations. No discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of inventories
were noticed on such physical verification of inventories when compared with books of
accounts.
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(iii)

(b)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

According to the information and explanations given to us, at any point of time of the year,
the Company has been sanctioned working capital facility excess of five corers rupee in
aggregate, from banks on the basis of security current assets. In our opinion, the quarterly
returns or statements filed by the Company with such banks are in agreement with the
unaudited books of account of the Company.

The Company is yet to submit the quarterly returns or statements comprising stock
statements, book debt statements and statements on ageing analysis of the debtors/other
receivables for the quarter ended 31st March 2025 with banks. '

The Company has given guarantees during the year and the outstanding balance of loans and
guarantees as at 31st March 2025 are given below:

.

Loans Guarantees
(X in Millions) | (X in Millions)

A. | Aggregate amount granted / provided during the
year:

- Holding Company - 1162.00
- Subsidiaries - -

- Joint Ventures - -

- Others .

B. | Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date in
respect of above cases*

-“ Holding Company# - 1562.00
- Subsidiaries - -

- Joint Ventures - -

- Others - B

* The amounts reported are gross amounts including accrued interest (wherever applicable), without considering
provision made.

# The Company has provided the corporate guarantee to the Senores Pharmaceuticals Limited before it become
the holding company of the Company w.e.f. 14™ December 2023. i

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures
conducted by us, we are of the opinion that the company has not granted any loans to parties
covered in register maintained under Section 189 of The Companies Act, 2013(‘the act’).

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, in the case of loans given, Loan is repayable on
demand and payment of interest on periodic basis, which is regular.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the repayment of principal and payment of
interest has been stipulated as in mentioned in (c) above, hence the question of overdue
amounts does not arise.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
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(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

year, which has been renewed or extended or fresh loans given to settle the overdues of
existing loans given to the same party.

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not given any loans either
repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment, except as
mentioned in (c) above.

The company has given loans and guarantees, provisions of section 185 and 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013 have been complied with to the extent applicable.

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from
the public. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under section
148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013. We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained
by the Company pursuant to the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, as amended
prescribed by the Central Government for maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of
the Companies Act, 2013, and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed cost records
have been made and maintained by the Company. We have, however, not made a detailed
examination of the cost records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or
complete,

(a) The Company does not have any liability in respect of Sales tax, Service tax, Duty of excise
and Value added tax during the year since effective 1 July 2017, these statutory dues have
been subsumed into Goods and Services Tax (‘GST).

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, amounts deducted/ accrued in the books of
account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including GST, Provident fund, Employees’
State Insurance, Income-tax, Cess and other material statutory dues have generally been
regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable
in respect of GST, Provident fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Duty of
Customs, Cess and other material statutory dues were in arrears as at March, 2024 for a
period of more than six months from the date they became payable.
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(b)

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of GST,
Provident fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales tax, Service tax, Duty of
Customs, Value added tax, Cess or other statutory dues which have not heen deposited by
the Company on account of disputes, except for the following:

Paring to Forum wher
Nature of Amount which the - ; ¢
Name of Statute i s dispute is
Dues (Xin Millions) amount
pending
relates
Income Tax Act, | Income Tax 46.29 2018-19 Gujarat High
1961 Court
Income Tax Act, | Income Tax 158.83 2021-22 CIT-A-11,
1961 Ahmedabad

(vii)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions,
previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the
Income-tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

(ix)

(a)

(d)

(e)

(f)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in the
repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any
lender during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the company has not been declared willful
defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has taken a term loan during the
year and it is unutilized for the purpose for which term loan has taken.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of
the balance sheet of the Company, we report that no funds have been raised on short-term
basis and utilized for long term basis by the Company. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(d) of the
Qrder is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of
the financial statements of the Company, we report that the Company has not taken any
funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries
as defined under the Companies Act, 2013, Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not
applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by
us, we report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of
securities held in its subsidiaries as defined under the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly,
clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable.
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(x)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiil)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

(a) The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments). Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(a) Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the
information and explanations given to us, considering the principles of materiality outlined
in Standards on Auditing, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the Company has
been noticed or reported during the course of the audit.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, nho report under sub-section
(12) of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-
4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the
Central Government.

(c) As represented to us by the Management, there were no whistle blower complaints
received by the Company during the year and up to the date of this report.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company.
Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

Based upon the audit procedures performed and according to the information and explanations
given to us, all the transactions with related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188
of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the Financial
statements etc. as required by the applicable accounting standards,

Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the
information and explanations given to us, Internal audit under sec 138 of Companies Act, 2013 is
not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, clause 3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable, However,
The Company has in-house internal audit system.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its
directors and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to
the Company.

(a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934, Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made
by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3{xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.
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{xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

(xx)

For Rajesh J. Shah & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 108407W

CA Jimit R. Shah
Partner

(d) According to the information and explanations provided to us during the course of audit,
the Group does not have any CIC. Accordingly, the requirements of clause 3(xvi)(d) are not
applicable.

The Company has incurred cash losses in the current and in the immediately preceding financial
year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(xvili) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of
Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting
its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one
year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the
future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to
the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged
by the Company as and when they fall due.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is no unspent
amount under sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 pursuant to any project.
Accordingly, clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable.

—

Membership No.: 163920
UDIN : 25163920BMHULLGESS

Place: Ahmedabad
Date: 14-05-2025
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Annexure “B” to the Independent Auditor’s Report

(Referred to in paragraph 2 (f) under ‘Report on other legal and regulatory requirements’ section of our
report to the Members of Ratnatris Pharmaceuticals Private Limited of even date)

Report on the internal financial controls over financial reporting under clause (i) of sub — section 3 of
section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Ratnatris
Pharmaceuticals Private Limited (“the Company”) as at March 31, 2025, in conjunction with our audit of
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's responsibility for internal financial controls

The hoard of directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditars’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India and the standards on auditing prescribed under Section 143 (10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those standards
and the guidance note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
abtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting
were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement in the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial control system over financial reporting.

AHMEDABAD /5
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Ratnatris Pharmaceuticals Private Limited

Meaning of internal financial contrals over financial reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (jii) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management of override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has, in all
material respects, an adequate internal financial control system over financial reporting and such internal
financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Rajesh J, Shah & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 108407W

Partner
Membership No.: 163920
UDIN : 25163920BMHULLG8BSS

Place: Ahmedabad
Date: 14-05-2025
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Ratnatris Pharmaceuticals Private Limited
(Formerly known as Ratnamani Healthcare Private Limited)
Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2025

(% in Millions)

Particulars Nates fat RS,
31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
ASSETS
MNon-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 5 540.08 569.35
Capital Work - In - Progress 44.89 28.87
Right-of-use assets 71 10.20 12.05
Intangible Assets 8 64.66 18.78
Financial assets
Deferred Tax Assets(Net) 28 116.37 36.63
Investments 9 0.08 0.07
Other financial assets 10 267 3.77
Other non-current assets 11 9,23 10.21
Total non-current assets 788.18 679.75
Current assets
Inventories 12 144.79 153.81
Financial assets
Trade receivables 13 430.97 362.65
Cash and cash equivalents 14 0.25 0.34
Bank Balances other than above 14 1.55 1.58
Other financial assets 15 295 517
Short Term Loans and advances 16 - 3.00
Other current assets 17 95,76 114.59
Current tax assets 18 5.24 538
Total current assets 685.51 646.49
TOTAL ASSETS 1,473.69 1,326.23
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 19 37.45 37.45
Other equity 20 22.50 55.28
Total Equity 59.95 92.75
Liabilities
Nan-current liabilities
Financial liabilities )
Borrowings 21 872.27 , 646.96
Lease liabilities 7.2 9.62 12,06
Provisions 22 10.33 5.90
Total non-current liabilities 892.22 664.92
Current Liabilities
Financial liahilities
Borrowings 23 104.46 159.27
Lease liabilities 7.2 2,51 1.18
Trade payables 24
Dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 135.62 155.45
Dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small
¢ 205.10 214.75
enterprises
Provisions 25 3.66 2.20
Other current financial liahilities 26 29.28 24.31
Other Current Liabilities 27 40.89 11.40
Total current liabilities 521.52 568.56
Total Liabilities 1,413.75 1,233.48
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 1,473.69 1,326.23
Significant Accounting Policies 1

The accompanying notes are integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date attached

For Rajesh J. Shah & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No: 108407W

Jimit R Shah
Partner
Membership No. 163920
UDIN - 251639208BMHULL6883

Date : 14/05/2025
Place : Ahmedabad

For and hehalf of Board of Directors of
Ratnatris Pharmaceuticals Private Limited

(Formerly known as Ratnamani Healthcare Private Limited)

CIN : U24230GJ2005PTCJ47394

Jitendra B. Sanghvi

fw/wé_

Swapnil 1. Shah

Director Director

DIN: 00271995

Date : 14/05/2025
Place : Ahmedabad

DIN: 05259821




Ratnatris Pharmaceuticals Private Limited
(Formerly known as Ratnamani Healthcare Private Limited)
Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31st March, 2025

As per our report of even date attached

For Rajesh J. Shah & Associates

Chartered Accountants =
Firm’s Registration No: 108_4;}7_(.)\3';\ 3 /
Jimit R Shah

Partner

Membership No. 163920
UDIN - 25163920BMHULLE888

Date : 14/05/2025
Place : Ahmedabad

(X in Millions)
. For the year ended For the year ended
Parluiar e 31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024

INCOME

Revenue from operations 29 1,334.04 1,042.57

Other income 30 &31 83.07 8.55
TOTAL INCOME (A) 1,417.11 1,051.12
EXPENSES

Cost of material consumed 32 770.74 676.57

Purchase of Stock in Trade 32 39.78 29.08

Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and 33

stock-in-trade 37.36 (28.36)

Employee benefits expenses 34 189.37 173.29

Finance costs 35 71.94 55.04

Depreciation and amortisation expenses 5 60.10 58.82

Other expenses 36 286.64 246.88
TOTAL EXPENSES (B) 1,455.94 1,211.34
Profit/ (loss) before exceptional items and tax (A-B) (38.83) (160.22)
Exceptional Iltems 38 = =
Profit/ (loss) before tax (38.83) {160.22)
Tax expense

Current Tax - -

Short / Excess Provision for Tax - -

Deferred Tax 28 (79.39) (40.60)

MAT credit entitlement - -

Total Tax Expenses (79.39) (40.60)
Profit/ (loss) after tax for the period (C) 40.56 (119.62)
Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Re-measurement. (losses)/gains on defined benefit plans 38 (1.30) 0.93
Income tax relating to above 38 0.36 {0.26)
Other comprehensive income for the period, net of tax (D) (0.94) 0.67
Total Comprehensive Income for the Period (C+D) 39.62 (118.94)
Earning per equity share (EPS) for profit for the pericd (face value 37
of Rs.10/-)

Basic (Rs.) 10.83 (48.25)

Diluted (Rs.) 10.83 (48.25)
Significant Accounting Policies 1

The accompanying notes are integral part of the financial statements.

For and behalf of Board of Directors of
Ratnatris Pharmaceuticals Private Limited
(Formerly known as Ratnamani Healthcare Private Limited)

CIN : uzazsoGJz@couaga
%:%S gi Y
Jitendra B. Sanghvi Swapnil L. Shah

Director Director
DIN: 00271995 DIN: 05259821

Date : 14/05/2025
Place : Ahmedabad




Ratnatris Pharmaceuticals Private Limited
(Formerly known as Ratnamani Healthcare Private Limited)
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on 31st March, 2025

(% in Millions)
Particul Year ended Year ended
articulars 31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
A CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit / (Loss) before tax (38.83) (160.22)
Adjustments for :
Depreciation and amortisation expense 60.10 58.82
Provision no longer required written back (72.40) (0.01)
Bad debts / advances / sundry balance write off 0.39 0.55
Sundry Creditors Written Off (2.20)
Unrealised foreign exchange (gain) (net) (3.27) {2.85)
(Gain) / Loss on sale / discard / write-off of property, plant & equipment - 0.40
Finance costs 71.94 55.04
Interest income (0.49) (0.83)
Other Comprehensive Income (1.30)
13.94 (49.10)
Adjustments for changes in working capital .
Trade receivables and other assets (76.99) (119.65)
Inventories 9.02 (28.50)
Trade payahles, liabilities and provisions 4.56 154.32
CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS (49.47) (42.94)
Direct taxes paid (net of refunds) 0.11 2.25
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES ; (49.36) (40.69)
B CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipments and intangible assets (86.76) (44.19)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipments = 0.50
Investment in / proceeds from fixed deposits 0.03 (0.00)
Change in Loans (net) 3.00 13.62
Acquisition of Investments g (0.01) -
Interest received 0.84 0.83
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (82.90) {29.25)
C CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from Issue of Equity Shares . =
Proceeds from non-current borrowings 230.26 183.62
Repayment of non-current borrowings (5.12) (74.23)
Proceeds from short-term borrowings, (net) (54.81) 15.91
Repayment of lease obligations (2.39) (2.28)
Finance costs paid (35.75) (53.08)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES 132.18 69.94
NET (DECREASE) / INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (0.09) 0.00
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF YEAR 0.34 0.34
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF YEAR (Refer note 12) 0.25 0.34

Notes:

{a) The abave statement of cash flow has been prepared under the 'Indirect method' as set out in Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 7-
Statement of Cash Flows.

(b) Purchase and sale of property, plant and equipment represents additions and deletions to property, plant and equipment and
investment properties adjusted for movement of capital work in progress, capital advances, capital creditors during the year.

(d) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities :
Non-current borrowings (Refer note 20 ):

Opening balance 6846.79 537.23

Amount borrowed during the year 230.26 183.62

Amount repaid during the year (5.12) (74.23)

Non-cash cash flows o 0.17 0.17

Closing balance ,%mr;?;‘:\ 872.27 646.79
Q\)- 'l}d‘o \

&



Ratnatris Pharmaceuticals Private Limited
{Farmerly known as Ratnamani Healthcare Private Limited)
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on 31st March, 2025

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on 31st March, 2025 (Cont..)

(X in Millions)

Particulars

Year ended
31st March, 2025

Year ended
31st March, 2024

Current horrowings (Refer note 21):

Opening balance 159.44 349.02
Compulsory convertible debentures converted to equity shares " (205.49
Amount (repaid) / borrowed during the year (net) (54.81) 15.91
Closing balance 104.46 159.44
Lease liabilities (Refer note 7.2):
Opening balance 13.24 14.20
Interest accrued during the year 1.29 129
Amount paid during the year (2.39) (2.28)
Closing balance 12.13 13.24
Finance Cost :
Opening balance 0.92 0.46
Finance Cost during the year 71.94 55.04
Amaount reclassified to lease liability (1.29) (1.32)
Unwinding of transaction costs incurred on borrowings (Non-cash) (0.17) {0.17)
Amount paid during the year (35.75) {53.08)
Closing balance 35.65 0.92

As per our report of even date attached

For Rajesh J. Shah & Associates
Chartered Accountants e

N
Firm’s Registration No: 108 ?w SHAl & N
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I3[ M.No
1 T\ugog
Jimit R Shah “\“\”""L”f-‘*
Partner \ A ‘
Membership No. 163920 \b‘ *DN‘\ “‘*'/
UDIN - 25163920BMHULL6888S =

f

Date : 14/05/2025
Place : Ahmedabad

For and behalf of Board of Directors of

Ratnatris Pharmaceuticals Private Limited

(Formerly known as Ratnamani Healthcare Private Limited)

CIN : U24230GJZ005PTC047394

ZQ_ “(M

Jitendra B. Sangh Swapnil J. Shah
Director Director
DIN: 00271995 DIN: 05259821

Date : 14/05/2025
Place : Ahmedabad




A. Equity Share Capital

Ratnatris Pharmaceuticals Private Limited

Particulars

No. of Shares

Amount
Particulars No. of Shares [ in Millions)
Issued, subscribed and paid up share capital
Equity Shares of Rs, 10/- each fully paid up 37,44,726 37.45
Changes in equity share capital - -
As at 31st March, 2025 37,44,726 37.45
Amount

(X in Millions)

Issued, subscribed and paid up share capital

Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up 18,76,636 18.77
Changes in equity share capital 18,68,090 18.68]
As at 31st March, 2024 37,44,726 37.45

B. Other equity

(Formerly known as Ratnamani Healthcare Private Limited)
Statement of changes in equity (SOCIE) for the period ended on 31st March, 2025

Reserves & Surplus

For Rajesh J. Shah & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No: 108407

limit R Shah
Partner
Membership No. 163920

Date : 14/05/2025
Place : Ahmedabad

Painitiags Capital reserve Securities Premium Retained earnings Total
Restatfad halance at the beginning of the 6.80 374.38 (325.90) 55.28
reporting period
Profit / (Lass) for the year - 40.56 40.56
Other comprehensive income (net of tax) - {0.94) (0.94)
1ssue of Equity Shares - B - -

Utilisation during the year (72.40) {72.40)

Balance as at 31st March, 2025 6.80 374.38 (358.69) 22.50
Restated balance at the heginning of the
reporting perlod 6.80 187.57 (206.96) (12.58
Profit / (Loss) for the year - (115.62) (119.62
Other comprehensive incame (net of tax) - - 0.67 0.67
Issue of Equity Shares - 186.81 186.81
Utilisation during the year - -

Balance as at March 31, 2024 6.80 374.38 (325.90) 55.28

For and behalf of Board of Diréctors of
Ratnatris Pharmaceuticals Private Limited

{Formerly known as Ratnamani Healthcare Private Limited)

CIN : U24230GJ2005PTC047394

a8

litendra B, Sanghvi
Director
DIN: 00271995

Date ; 14/05/2025
Place : Ahmedabad

e

Swapnil 1. Shah

.

Directar
DIN: 05259821




Ratnatris Pharmaceuticals Private Limited
(Formerly known as Ratnamani Healthcare Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025

3.1

3.2

1 Corporate Information

Ratnatris Pharmaceuticals Private Limited ("the Company") (Corporate Identity Number {'CIN'): U24230GJ2005PTC047394) having registered
office at 1004-1006, 10th Floor, Narth Tower, ONE42, Off. Bopal Ambli Road, Opp. Ashok Vatika, Bodakdev, Ahmedabad, Ahmedabad, Gujarat,
India, 380054 , is private limited company incorporated and domiciled in India.

The Company is in the business of manufacturing of tablets, oral-liquid, capsules, powders, Injections and supplies mainly to domestic and
export markets.

2 Statement of Compliance

The financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The financial statements up to year ended 31st March 2022 were prepared in accordance with the accounting standards notified under
Companies {Accounting Standard) Rules, 2006 (as amended) and other relevant provisions of the Act.

3 Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

Basis of preparation and presentation

The financial statements have been prepared and presented under the historical cost convention on an accrual basis of accounting except
for the following material items which have been measured at fair value.

- Financial assets and liabilities are measured at fair value or at amortised cost depending on classification;
- Lease liability and Right-of-use assets— measured at fair value

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset ar paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if
the market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair
value measurement and/or disclosure purposes in the financial statements is determined on such a basis except for leasing transactions
that are within the scope of Ind AS 116 Leases, and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as
net realisable value in Ind AS 2 Inventories or value in use in Ind AS 36 Impairment of asset.

in addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the
inputs to the fair value measurements are ohservable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

- Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;

- Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included in Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liahility, either directly or
indirectly; and

- Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as set out in the Schedule Il (Division 1) to the Companies Act, 2013,

Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee (%) which is also the functional currency of the Company. All amounts disclosed in
the financial statements and notes have been rounded-off to the nearest Million or decimal thereof as per the requirement of Schedule 111,
unless otherwise stated. Amount less than % 5,000/~ is presented as % 0.00 Millions.




Ratnatris Pharmaceuticals Private Limited
(Formerly known as Ratnamani Healthcare Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025

3 Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements (Continued..)

3.3 Use of estimates

4 Material Accounting Policies:

A.

The preparation of financial statements are in conformity with the recognition and measurement principles of Ind AS which requires management to
make critical judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reporting of assets, liabilities, income and expenditure. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis and any revisions to the estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimates are revised and future periods are affected.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis and any revisions ta the estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimates are revised and future periods are affected.

Key source of estimation of uncertainty at the date of financial statements, which may cause material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year, is in respect of:

- Useful lives of property, plant and equipment
- Useful lives of intangible assets

- Valuatian of inventories

- Employee benefits

- Provisions & contingent liabilities

- Valuation of deferred tax assets

Financial instruments

Initial recognition and measurement
Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL), transaction costs
that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue. :

Classification gnd subsequent megsurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified based on assessment of business model and contractual cash flows in which
they are held.

Financial assets

On intial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at
-amortised cost;

- FVOCI — debt and equity investment; -

- FVTPL

At amortized cost
Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except If and in the period the Company changes its business model for
managing financial assets.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL

- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

At fair value through Other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

A financial asset is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:

- the asset is held within 3 business madel whose objective is achieved by both callecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.




Ratnatris Pharmaceuticals Private Limited
(Formerly known as Ratnamani Healthcare Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025

4 Material accounting policies (Continued..)

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in the
investment's fair value in OCI {designated as FVOCI — equity investment). This election is made on an investment-by-investment basis.

At fair Value through Profit and Loss (FVTPL)

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above are measured at FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial
assets. On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at
amartised cost or at FVOCI or at FYTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised
in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or lass incorporates any dividend or interest earned on the financial asset.

Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and goins and losses
Financial assets at FVTPL -

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any interest or dividend income, are recognised in the Statement
of Profit and Loss.

Financial assets at amortised cost -
These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses.

Interast income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as at FYTPLif it is classified as held-for-trading,
or it Is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition, Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses,
including any interest expense, are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured atamortised cost
using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. Any gain or
loss on derecognition is also recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. ;

Derecognition

Financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to
receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred

or in which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the financial
asset.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks
and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred assets are not derecognised.

Financial liabilities
The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or expire.

The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows under the madified terms are substantially different.
in this case, a new financial liability based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the Balance Sheet when, and only when, the Company currently has a|
legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously,

Cash and cash eguivalent
Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months
or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of

management.

183920
AHMEDABAD




Ratnatris Pharmaceuticals Private Limited
(Formerly known as Ratnamani Healthcare Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025

4 Materlal accounting policies (Continued..)

B. Property, plant & equipment

Recognition and measurement
Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cost of an
item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price including import duty and non refundable taxes or levies , any other costs directly

attributable to bringing the item to working condition for its intended use, and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the
site on which it is located.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate items (major
components) of property, plant and equipment,

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in statement of profit and loss.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company.

Advances paid towards acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each Balance Sheet date, are shown under other nan-current assets
and cost of assets not ready for intended use before the year end, are shown as capital work-in-progress,

Depreciation " .
Depraciation is calculated on cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their estimated residual values over their estimated useful lives using
the straight line method. Freehold land is not depreciated.

The astimated useful lives are as follows:

Class of asset Useful life
Buildings 30 Years
Plant & Equipments ' 3to 20 Years
Furniture & fixtures 10 Years
Vehicles 8 Years
Office Equipments 5 Years
Electrical Installations § 10 Years

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted if appropriate. Based on technical evaluation
and consequent advice, the management believes that its estimates of useful lives as given above best represent the period over which management
expects to use these assets.

Depreciation on additions (disposals) is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. from (up to) the date on which asset is ready for use (disposed of).

Leases

(i) The Company as lessee:

The Compary assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at the inception of contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assesses whether a contract conveys the right to
control use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether:

* The contract involves use of an identified asset;
» The Company has substantially all the econamic henefits from the use of the asset through the period of lease; and
» The Company has the right to direct the use of an asset.

At the date of commencement of lease, the Company recognises a Right-of-use asset (“ROU") and a corresponding liability for all lease arrangements in
which it is a lessee, except for leases with the term of twelve months or less (shart term leases) and low value leases. For short term and low value
leases, the Company recognises the lease payment as an operating expense on straight line basis aver the term of lease. Certain lease agreements
include an option to extend or terminate the lease before the end of lease term. ROU assets and the lease liabilities includes these options when it is
reasonably certain that they will be exercised.




Ratnatris Pharmaceuticals Private Limited
(Formerly known as Ratnamani Healthcare Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025

4 Material accounting policies (Continued..)

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the
underlying asset. Right-of-use assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts
may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e., higher of fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is
determined on individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets. In such
cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit {(CGU) to which the asset belongs.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortised cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease payments are discounted using the
interest rate explicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of these leases. Lease
liabilities are remeasured with a correspanding adjustment to the related right-of- use assets if the Company changes its assessment if whether it will
exercise an extension or a termination of option.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and the lease payments have been classified as financing cash flows.

(i) The Company as a Lessor:
Leases for which the Company is a lessor is classified as a finance or operating lease. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risk
and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified as finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating lease.

Intangible assets

Other intangible assets
Other intangible assets are initially measured at cost. Subsequently, such intangible assets are measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other
expenditure, including expenditure on brands, is recognised in statement of profit and loss as incurred.

Amaortisation

Amortisation is recognised in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of intangible assets. The
amortisation expensa is recognised in the statement of profit and loss account in the expense category that is consistent with the function of the
intangible asset. Intangible assets that are not available for use are amortised from the date they are available for use.

The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Class of asset Useful life
Product related Intagibles 4 Years
Computer Softwares 6 Years

Business Combination

In accordance with Ind AS 103, Business combinations, the Company accounts for business combinations after acquisition date using the acquisition
method when control is transferred to the Company. The cost of an acquisition is measured at the fair value of the assets given, equity instruments
issued and liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of exchange. The cost of acquisition also includes the fair value of any contingent consideration
and deferred consideration, if any. Any goodwill that arises is tested annually for impairment. Any gain on a bargain purchase Is recognised in OCl and
accumulated in equity as capital reserve if there exists clear evidence of the underlying reasons for classifying the business combination as resulting ina
bargain purchase; otherwise the gain is recognised directly in equity as capital reserve, Transaction costs are expensed as incurred. Business
combinations between entities under common control is accounted for at carrying value.
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F.

4 Material accounting policies {Continued..)

Impairment

{i) Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (“ECL") model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on
following:

In case of trade receivables, the Company follows a simplified approach wherein an amount equal to lifetime ECL is measured and recognised as loss
allowance.

Loss allowance for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from gross carrying amount of the assets. The amount of ECL (or reversal)
that is required ta adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date is recognised as an impairment gain or loss in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

{ii) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assess at each reporting date whether there is any indication that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. If any such indication
exists, then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated and an impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or Cash Generating Unit
(CGU) exceeds its estimated recoverable amount in the statement of profit and loss.

The recoverable amount of a CGU (or an individual asset) is higher of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. Value in use is based on the
estimated future cash flow, discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessment of the time value of
money and the risks specific to CGU (or the asset).

The Company's non-financial assets, are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such
indication exists, then the asset's recoverable amount is astimated. For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are
Combined together into cash-generating units (CGUs). Each CGU represents the smallest Company of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely
independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs.

Impairment loss recognised in respect of a CGU is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU, and then to reduce
the carrying amounts of the other assets of the CGU {or Company of CGUs) on a pro rata basis. )

An impairment loss in respect of other assets for which impairment loss has been recagnised in prior periods, the Company reviews at each reporting
date whether there is any indication that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment |oss is reversed if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. Such a reversal is made only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment lass had been recognised.

Inventaries

Inventories are measured at the lower of cast and net realisable value. The cost of inventories is based on the first-in first-out formula, and includes
expenditure Incurred in acquiring the inventories, production ar conversion costs and other costs incurred in bringing them to their present location and
condition. In the case of manufactured inventories and work-in-progress, cost includes an appropriate share of fixed production overheads based on
normal operating capacity.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and selling expenses. The net
realisable value of work-in-progress is determined with reference to the selling prices of related finished products,

Raw materials, components and other supplies held for use in the production of finished products are not written down below cost except in cases
where material prices have declined and it is estimated that the cost of the finished products will exceed their net realisable value,

The comparison of cost and net realisable value is made on an item-by-item basis.
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4 Material accounting policies (Continued..)

H. Foreignh currency:

Foreign currency transactions:

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at balance sheet date exchange rates are generally recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
determined. Translation differences on assets and liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. For example
translation differences on nan-monetary assets such as equity investments classified as FVOC| are recognised in other comprehensive income (OCI).

Revenue from contracts with customer

Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when a promise in a customer contract (performance obligation) has been satisfied by transferring contral over the promised
goads to the customer. Control over a promised goods refers to the ability to direct the use of, and obtain substantially all of the remaining benefits
from, those goods. Control is usually transferred upon shipment, delivery to, upon receipt of goods by the customer, in accordance with the delivery
and acceptance terms agreed with the customers. However, in certain cases, revenue is recognized on sale of products where shipment is on hold at
specific request of the customer provided performance obligation conditions has been satisfied and control is transferred, with customer taking title of
the goods. The amount of revenue to be recognised (transaction price) is based on the consideration expected to be received in exchange for goods,
excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties such as goods and services tax or other taxes directly linked to sales. If a contract contains more
than ane performance obligation, the transaction price is allocated to each performance obligation based on their relative stand-alone selling prices.
Revenue from product sales are recorded net of allowances for estimated rebates, cash discounts and estimates of product returns, all of which are
established at the time of sale.

For contracts with distributors, no sales are recognised when goods are physically transferred to the distributer under a consignment arrangement, or if
the distributor acts as an agent. In such cases, sales are recognised when control over the goods transfers to the end-customer, and distributor’s
commissions are presented within marketing and distribution. :

The consideration received by the Company in exchange for its goods may be fixed or variable. Variable consideration is only recognised when it is
considered highly probable that a significant revenue reversal will not occur once the underlying uncertainty related to variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.

Milestone payments and out licensing arrangements
The Company enters inta certain dossier sales, licensing and supply arrangements that, in certain instances, Include certain performance obligations.

Based on an evaluation of whether or not these obligations are inconsequential or perfunctory, the Company recognise or defer the upfront payments
received under these arrangements.

Income from out-licensing agreements typically arises fram the receipt of upfront, milestone and other similar payments from third parties for granting
a license to product- or technology- related intellectual property (IP). These agreements may be entered into with no further obligation or may include
commitments to regulatory approval, co-marketing or manufacturing, These may be settled by a combination of upfront payments, milestone
payments and other fees. These arrangements typically also consist of subsequent payments dependent on achieving certain milestones in accordance
with the terms prescribed in the agreement. Milestone payments which are contingent on achieving certain clinical milestones are recognised as
revenues either on achievement of such milestones, if the Milestones are considered substantive, or over the period we have continuing performance
obligations, if the milestones are not considered substantive. Whether to consider these commitments as a single perfarmance obligatian or separate
ones, or even being in scope of IndAS 115‘Revenues from Contracts with Customers, is not straightforward and requires some judgement. Depending
on the conclusion, this may result in all revenue being calculated at inception and either being recognised at point in time or spread over the term of a
longer performance obligation. Where performance obligations may not be distinct, this will bundled with the subsequent product supply obligations.
The new standard provides an exemption for sales-based royalties for licenses of intellectual property which will continue to be recognised as revenue
as underlying sales are incurred.
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4 Material accounting policies (Continued..)

The Company recognises a deferred income (contract liability) if consideration has been received {or has become receivable) before the company
transfers the promised goods or services to the customer. Deferred income mainly relates to remaining performance obligations in {partially)
unsatisfied long-term contracts or are related to amounts the Company expects to receive for goods and services that have not yet been transferred to
customers under existing, non-cancellable or otherwise enforceable contracts.

Contract assets are recognised when there is excess of revenue earned over billings on contracts. Contract assets are classified as unbilled receivables
{only act of invoicing is pending) when there is unconditional right to receive cash, and only passage of time is required, as per contractual terms.

Sales Return Allowances

The Company accounts for sales return by recording an allowance for sales return concurrent with the recognition of revenue at the time of a product
sale. The allowance is based on Company's estimate of expected sales returns. The estimate of sales raturn is determined primarily by the Company’s
historical experience in the markets in which the Company operates.

Recognition of dividend income, interest income or expense & rental income

Dividend income is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss an the date on which the Company's right to receive payment is established.

Interest income or expense Is recognised using the effective interest method.

Rental income is recognised in statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis aver the term of the lease except where the rentals are structured to

increase in line with expected general inflation. Lease incentives granted are recognised as an integral part of the total rental income, over the term of
the lease,

Government grant

The Company recognises government grants at their fair value only when there is reasonable assurance that the conditions attached to them will be
complied with, and the grants will be received. Government grants received in relation to assets are recognised as deferred income and amortised over
the useful life of such asset. Government grants, which are revenue in nature are either recognised as income or deducted in reporting the related
expense based on the terms of the grant, as applicable. ?

Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits:

All employee benefits falling due within twelve months from the end of the period in which the employees render the related services are classified as
short-term employee benefits, which include benefits like salaries, wages, short term compensated absences, performance incentives, etc. and are
recognised as expanses in the period in which the employee renders the related service and measured accordingly.

Post-employment benefit:
Post-employment benefit plans are classified into defined benefits plans and defined contribution plans as under:

Gratuity

The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit plan ("the Gratuity Plan”) covering the eligible emplovyees of the Company. The Gratuity Plan
provides a lump-sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of employment, of an amount based on the
respective employee’s salary and the tenure of the employment with the Company.

Liability with regard to the Gratuity Plan are determined by actuarial valuation, performed by an independent actuary, at each balance sheet date using
the projected unit credit method.

The Company recognises the net obligation of a defined benefit plan asa liability in its balance sheet. Gains or losses through remeasurement of the net
defined benefit liability are recognised in other comprehensive income and are not reclassified to profit and loss in the subsequent periods. The actual
return of the portfolio of plan assets, in excess of the yields computed by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation is
recognised in other comprehensive income. The effect of any plan amendments are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.
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4 Material accounting palicies (Continued..)

Provident fund

Eligible employees of the Company receive benefits from provident fund, which is a defined contribution plan. Both the eligible employees and the
Company make monthly contributions to the Government administered provident fund scheme equal to a specified percentage of the eligible
employee's salary. Amounts collected under the provident fund plan are deposited with in a government administered provident fund. The Company

has no further obligation to the plan beyond its monthly contributions. Company's contribution to the pravident fund is charged to Statement of Profit
and Loss.

Compensated absences

The Company's current policy permits eligible employees to accumulate compensated absences up to a prescribed limit and receive cash in lieu thereof
in accordance with the terms of the policy. The Company measures the expected cost of accumulating compensated absences as the additional amount
that the Company expects to pay as a result of unused entitlement that has accumulated as at the reporting date. The expected cost of these benefits is
calculated using the projected unit credit method by qualified actuary every year. Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustment and
changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the period in which they arise. The obligations are presented as
current liabilities in the balance sheet if the entity does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement for at least twelve months after the
reporting period, regardless of when the actual settlement is expected to occur.

. Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs (including exchange differences relating to foreign currency borrowings to the extent that they are
regarded as an adjustment to interest costs) incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition or
construction of an asset which necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of that
asset. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale.

Income taxes

Income tax comprises of current and deferred income tax. Income tax expense is recognised in statement of profit and loss except to the extent that it
relates to an item recognised directly in equity in which case it is recognised in other comprehensive income. Current income tax for current year and
prior periods is recognised at the amount expected to be paid or recovered from the tax authorities, using the tax rates and laws that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. -

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the
asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognised for all temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the financial statements except when:

— temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a husiness combination and that affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time of transaction; and

— temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements to the extent that the Company is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the tempaorary differences and it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be
realised.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured using the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance
sheet date and are expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which thase temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The
effect of changes in tax rates on deferred income tax assets and liabilities is recognised as income or expense in the period that includes the enactment
or substantive enactment date. A deferred income tax assets is recognised to the extent it is probable that future taxable income will be available
against which the deductible temporary timing differences and tax losses can be utilised. The Company offsets income-tax assets and liabilities, where it
has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and where it intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and sattle the
liability simultaneously.

Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which they can be used. mﬂ & m
< ~
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0. Provisions and contingencies

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there Is @ possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably will not, require an
outflow of resources. When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no
provision or disclosure is made.

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it
is prabable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future
cash flows {representing the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheat date) at a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as
finance cost. Expectad future operating losses are not provided for.

Onerous contracts

A contract is considered to be anerous when the expected economic benefits to be derived by the Company from the contract are lower than the
unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the contract. The provision for an onerous contract is measured at the present value of the lower of
the expected cost of terminating the contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the contract. Before such a provision is made, the Company
recognises any impairment loss on the assets assoclated with that contract.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed using the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the periad adjusted for treasury shares
held. Diluted earnings per share is computed using the weighted-average number of equity and dilutive equivalent shares outstanding during the period
using the treasury stock method for options and warrants, except where the results would be anti-dilutive.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and Cash equivalents for the purpose of Cash Flow Statement comprise cash, drafts and cheques in hand, bank balances, unencumbered demand
deposits with banks where the original maturity is three months or less and other short term highly liquid investments. Bank overdrafts that are
" repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Company's cash management are included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the
purpose of Cash Flow Statement,
Operating cycle ’
All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in the
Schedule IIl of the Companies Act, 2013, Operating cycle for project related assets and liabilities is the time from start of the project to their realisation
in cash or cash equivalents.

Exceptional items

Exceptional items refer to items of income or expense within the statement of profit and loss from ordinary activities which are nonrecurring and are of
such size, nature or incidence that their separate disclosure is considered necessary to explain the performance of the Company.

Segment reporting

_ An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses,
including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Company’s other components, and for which discrete financial information
is available. Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker, The
Directors of the Company is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments and accordingly is identified as
the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM). All operating segments’ operating results are reviewed regularly by the CODM to make decisions about
resources to be allocated to the segments and assess their performance.

Events after reporting date
Where events occurring after the Balance Sheet date provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period, the impact of such
events is adjusted within the financial statements, Otherwise, events after the Balance Sheet date of material size or nature are only disclosed.

Recent accounting pronouncements

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA") notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. For the half year ended 30th September, 2024, MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments
to the existing standards applicable to the Company. e
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Ratnatris Pharmaceuticals Private Limited

(Formerly known as Ratnamani Healthcare Private Limited)
Notes to Financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025

Note 6
Capital Work - In - Progress (X in Millions)
Particulars Asat hrat
31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024

Capital Work - In - Progress

Opening Balance: 28.87 26.50

Additions During Year: 16.02 237
Deduction during year - -
Gross carrying Amount 44.89 28.87
Note 7

7.1

Right Of Use -Asset (X in Millions)

Particulars Ve hsat
31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024

Intangible Assets

Right Of Use -Asset

Opening Balance: 15.65 15.65
Additions During Year: % 1
Deduction during year 1
Gross carrying Amount 15.65 15.65
Accumlated Amortisation Opening 3.60 1.80
Amortisation for the year 1.85 1.80
Deduction during the year %

Accumlated Amortisation Closing 5.45 3.60
Net carrying Amount 10.20 12.05
7.2 :

Lease Liabilities (X in Millions)
Particulars 31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Lease Liabilities 12.13 13.24
Total 12.13 13.24
Note: 7.2.1 - Reconciliation of Lease Liabilities (% in Millions)
Particulars 31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Balance at the beginning 13.24 14.20
Additions 1.29 1.32
Finance Cost 1.29 1.32
Deletions (2.39) (2.28)
Payment of Lease (2.39) (2.28)
Balance at the end 12.13 13.24
Note: 7.2.2 - Current and Non-Current Classification of Lease Liabilities (X in Millions)
Particulars 31st March, 2025 31st March, 202
Less than 1 year 2.51 239
1-5 years P 13.47 10.84
More than 5 years 4% o ‘54\,};1:\ - 5.01
Total undiscounted Lease Liability ﬁ (.ﬁ, 15.99 18.24
Less : Future Liability on Interest Account ;’m ?:'\ (3.86) (5.01
Balance of Lease Liability L*\, H;{’F"r‘,’frﬁ"m Jlx ]| 12.13 13.24
Non-current \\ / 9.62 12.06
Current ,», A,..,-Q\S\ 2.51 1.18




Ratnatris Pharmaceuticals Private Limited
(Formerly known as Ratnamani Healthcare Private Limited)

Notes to Financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025

Note: 7.2.3- Amount Recognised in Profit and Loss (% in Millions)
Particulars 31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Depreciation of Right to Use Assets 1.85 1.80
Interest on Lease Liabilities 1.29 132
Amount recognised in Profit & Loss 3.14 3.12
Note: 7.2.4 - Total cash Outflow For the Year

(X in Millions)
Particulars 31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Total cash Outflow For the Year 2.39 2.28
Taotal 2.39 2.28

7.2.5 - Other Notes:

(i) Lease contract entered by the Company along with Senores Pharmaceuticals Limited pertains to office buildings taken on lease to
conduct its business in the ordinary course.

(i) The Company has not revalued its Right-of-use assets.
(iii) Lease obligations, Interest expense on lease, maturity profile of lease obligation and payment of lease obligations are disclosed
(iv) Lease liabilities presented as per Ind AS 116.

Note 8
Intangible Assets (X in Millions)
Particulars Az Andl
31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024

Intangible Assets

Product relatable Intangibles

Opening Balance: 28.23 16.81
Additions During Year: 53.24 11.42
Deduction during year . _
Gross carrying Amount 81.47 28.23
Accumlated Amortisation Opening 11.26 420
Amortisation for the year 7.06 7.06
Deduction during the year - -
Accumlated Amortisation Closing 18.32 11.26
Net carrying Amount 63.16 16.97
Computer Softwares

Opening Balance: 1.99 0.15
Additions During Year: = 1.84]
Deduction during year - .
Graoss carrying Amount 1.99 1.99
Accumlated Amortisation Opening 0.18 0.08
Amortisation for the year 0.31 0.10
Deduction during the year - -
Accumlated Amortisation Closing 0.48 0.18
Net carrying Amount B ASS N 1.50 1.81

roy h"?z.
& A\
/w/ ww-n\%
Total Intangible Assets & 64.66 18.78
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Ratnatris Pharmaceuticals Private Limited

(Formerly known as Ratnamani Healthcare Private Limited)
Notes to Financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025

Note 9
Investments (X in Millions)
As at As at
Particulars
e 31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Non-current investments
A. Investment in government securities 0.00 0.00
B. Other Investment 0.08 0.07
Total non-current investments 0.08 0.07
Refer Note-44-Fair Value Measurement
Note 10
Non Current Financial Assets (% in Millions)
Particulars ALt AR
31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Deposits with original maturity more than 12 months - 0.42
Security and other deposits 2.49 3.35
1 Other non-current financial asset 0.18 -
Total non-current financial assets 2.67 3.77
Note 11
Other Non Current Assets (% in Millions)
As at As at
Particulars
31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Capital Advances - 231
Payment under Protest 9.23 7.90
Total other non-current assets 9.23 10.21
Note 12
Inventaries (% in Millions)
Particulars feat he:al
31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Raw Material 69.06 48.87
Raw Material In Transit 2.78 2.23
Packing Materials 34.38 34.73
Packing Materials In Transit 1.95 0.13
Work-in-progress 20.10 50.52
Finished goods 10.34 17.28
Stores and spares 6.18 -
Total Inventories 144.79 153.81

Inventories are hypothecated as security for borrowings as disclased under Note 39.1.

163920
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Ratnatris Pharmaceuticals Private Limited

(Formerly known as Ratnamani Healthcare Private Limited)
Notes to Financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025

Note 13
Trade receivables

[Carried at amortised cost, except otherwise stated]

(X in Millions)

Particulars e Ao
31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Trade receivables considered good-unsecured 431.27 362.99
Trade receivables which have significant increase in credit risk -
Trade receivables - credit impaired ' = -
431.27| 362.99
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts -0.30 -0.34
Total trade receivables 430.97 362.65
Note 13.1 Receivable From Related Parties Included Above. (Refer Note 41)
* Refer note 42 - Financial Instruments - Fair Value Measurement & Financial Risk Management
Ageing schedule is given as under.
Trade Receivable ageing schedule for the year ended as on 31st March 2025 and 31st March 2024
As at 31 March 2025 (X in Millions)
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Unbilled Not Due Lessthan & months 1Year- 2 Year - More than Total
6 months - 1year 2 Years 8 Years 3 Years
Undisputed
Considered geod 26.90 61.47 - 263.97 13.11 17.85 18.68 29.29 431.27
Credit Impaired - - - - - - -
Total 26.890 61.47 263.97 13.11 17.85 18.68 29.29 431.27
As at 31 March 2024 (X in Millions)
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Unbilled Mot Due Lessthan 6 months 1 Year - 2 Year - More than Total -
& months  -1year 2 Years 3 Years 3 Years
Undisputed
Considered good 0.31 20147 100.95 9.34 2143 27.44 2.06 362.99
Credit Impaired - - - - - = < -
Total 031 20147 100.95 9.34 21.43 27.44 2.06 862.99
Note 14
Cash and cash equivalents (% in Millions)
Particulars Asat Axat
31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Cash and bank balances
Balances with banks
In current accounts 0.13 0.12
Cash on hand v 0.12 0.22
Total cash and cash equivalents N B AR 0.25 0.34
. N
Bank balances other than above ‘i‘:}‘ 8 \L‘{"??‘\
Margin money deposits S 1“2592‘0 )": 1.55 1.58
Liquid deposit %\ AuMEDABAD [0 -
Total other bank balances N2\ J&/ 1.55 1.58
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Ratnatris Pharmaceuticals Private Limited

(Formerly known as Ratnamani Healthcare Private Limited)
Notes to Financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025

* Refer note 42 - Financial Instruments - Fair Value Measurement & Financial Risk Management

Note 15
Current Financial Assets (X in Millions)
Particulars Ao i
31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Incentives/ benefits receivable from Government 2.94 4.81
Interest accrued but note received on loans and deposits 0.01 0.36
Total current Financial Assets 2.95 5.17
Note 16
Short Term Loans and Advances (X in Millions)
Particulars AESE fmat
31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Loans and Advances to Related Party - 3.00
Total Short Term Loans and Advances - 3.00
Note 17
Other Current Assets (X in Millions)
Particulars At s
31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Gross Indirect taxes recoverable o 201.23 187.33
Less: earmaked against specific borrowing -107.19 -107.19
Indirect taxes recoverable 94.05 80.15
Advances to vendors A * 3.83 31.39
Pre-paid expenses 1.41 2.74
Staff advances 0.16 0.31
Other Current Assets 0.30 -
Total other current assets 99.76 114.59
Note 18
Current tax asset (% in Millions)
Particulars M S
31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Advance Income Tax for the year 5.24 5.35
Current Tax asset (net) 5.24 5.35




Ratnatris Pharmaceuticals Private Limited
(Formerly known as Ratnamani Healthcare Private Limited)
Notes to Financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025

Note 19
Equity share capital (% in Millions)
Particulars A Az
31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Authorised share capital
45,00,000 [PY 45,00,000 (PPY 45,00,000)] equity shares of % 10 each 45.00 45.00
Total 45.00 45.00
(X in Millions)
Particulars A/t A
31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Issued, subscribed and paid up capital
37,44,726 equity shares of X 10 each 37.45 37.45
Total 37.45 37.45
Note 19.1
Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period
i Particulars Amount
No. of shares T
As At 31st March 2024 % in Millions
At the beginning of the year 3744726 37.45
Add : Shares issued during the year - -
As At 31st March 2025 3744726 37.45
e Particulars Amount
No. of shares RS
As At 31st March 2023 X in Millions
At the beginning of the year 1876636 18.77
Add : Shares'issued during the year 1868090 18.68
As At 31st March, 2024 3744726 37.45
Note 19.2
Details of shareholder(s) holding more than 5% Equity Shares
As At 31st March 2025
Particulars Percentage Holding
No. of shares
Senores Pharmaceuticals Limited 25,83,861 69.00%
Ratnamani Marketing Private Limited 2,70,000 7.21%
Jitendra Babulal Sanghvi 1,88,865 5.04%
: As At 31st March, 2024
Particulars Percentage Holding
No. of shares
Senores Pharmaceuticals Limited 25,83,861 69.00%
Ratnamani Marketing Private Limited 2,70,000 7.21%

Terms /Rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of X 10 per share, Each holder of equity share is entitled to one vote
per share. The Company declares and pays dividend in Indian Rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the
approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting except in case of interim dividend. In the event of liquidation of the
Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential

-~

amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholder. f/ﬁ
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Ratnatris Pharmaceuticals Private Limited
(Formerly known as Ratnamani Healthcare Private Limited)
Notes to Financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025

Note 19.3
Details of Promoter(s) holding:
Particulars AsRLALIE Nafch 2025 Percentage Holding
No. of shares
Senores Pharmaceuticals Limited 25,83,861 69.00%
Ratnamani Marketing Private Limited 2,70,000 7.21%
litendra Babulal Sanghvi 1,88,865 5.04%
Jayanti Misrimal Sanghvi 1,62,000 4.33%
Manoj Prakash Sanghvi 1,08,000 2.88%
Dimple Manoj Sanghvi 1,08,000 2.88%
Pavan Misrimal Sanghvi 1,08,000 2.88%
Vimla Pavan Sanghvi 1,08,000 2.88%
Shanti Misrimal Sanghvi 54,000 1.44%J
Sashi Shantilal Sanghvi 54,000 1.44%5
Particulars AEE SLallanch, Tz Percentage Holding

; No. of shares

'| senores Pharmaceuticals Limited 25,83,861 69.00%
Ratnamani Marketing Private Limited 2,70,000 7.21%
Jitendra Babulal Sanghvi , 14,320 0.38%
Jayanti Misrimal Sanghvi 1,62,000 4.33%
Manoj Prakash Sanghvi 1,08,000 2.88%
Dimple Manoj Sanghvi 1,08,000 2.88%
Pavan Misrimal Sanghvi 1,08,000 2.88%
Vimla Pavan Sanghvi 1,08,000 2.88%
Kushal Champalal Bhansali 1,26,818 3.39%
Adinath Medicare Put. Ltd. ) 47,727 1.27%
Shanti Misrimal Sanghvi 54,000 1.44%
Sashi Shantilal Sanghvi - 54,000 1.44%
Note 20
Other equity (X in Millions)

Particulars Azt A
31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Retained Earnings (358.69) (325.90)
Securities Premium 37438 374.38
Capital Reserve 6.80 6.80
Total other equity 22.50 55.28
Note 20.1
Retained earnings (% in Millions)
Particulars NErS AsAe
31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024

Opening Balance (325.90) (206.96)
Add:
Profit during the year 40.56 (119.62)
Other comprehensive income (net of tax) (0.94) 0.67
Utilisation during the year (72.40)
Total Retained earnings (358.69) (325.90)

= —=
73 SHAHE 4o



Ratnatris Pharmaceuticals Private Limited
(Formerly known as Ratnamani Healthcare Private Limited)
Notes to Financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025

Note 20.2
Securities Premium (X in Millions)
Particulars Asit i
31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Opening Balance 374.38 187.57
Add: During the year - 186.81
(Less): During the year - -
Total Securities Premium 374.38 374.38
Note 20.3
Capital Reserves (% in Millions)
Particulars At D
31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Opening Balance 6.80 6.80
Add: During the year - -
(Less): During the year . +
Total Capital Reserves 6.80 6.80
Note 21
Non-current Borrowings (% in Millions)
Particulars i A5 Mt
31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Vehicle loans from bank 5.96 26.65
Secured-Term loan from banks- rupee 185.99 55.63
NC-Secured-Term loan from banks for adjustment (0.92) (1.09
NC - Unsecured borrowings from - ZCB 0.29 0.27
Unsecured-loan from related parties 527.74 40.94
Unsecured-loan from others 153.03 524.39
Less: -
Current maturities of long term debt - vehicle (0.00) {0.00)
Current maturities of long term debt - term loan-rupee (0.00) (0.00)
Current maturities of long term debt - term loan adjustment 0.17 0.17
Total Non-Current Borrowings 872.27 646.96

21.1 The Company has been sanctioned Working Capital limits from banks on the basis of Security of Current Assets. The Quarterly
Returns or statements filed by the Company with such Banks are in agreement with the Books of Accounts of the Company.

21.2 The Company has issued Zero Coupon Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures (NCD) amounting to X 220 Millions against the

partial claim of unsecured lenders of the Company. The Conditions are as follows:
() Zero Coupon NCDs will not carry any Interest and they will be unsecured.

(i) The redemption of Zero Coupon NCDs are linked to the recoveries of the items of Assets mentioned in 21.3
(iil) As and when the Company makes recovery / realization in respect of any of the above mentioned assets, these NCDs are to be

redeemed to holders of NCD on progressive basis.

(iv) If hawever, the Company is unable to make full recovery of the entire amount of assets as mentioned in ahove sub-note {ii) within
period of 15 years from the date of NCLT order, Unrecovered Assets mentioned above to be written off and Zero Coupon NCDs to be

written hack.
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Ratnatris Pharmaceuticals Private Limited
(Formerly known as Ratnamani Healthcare Private Limited)
Notes to Financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025
21.3 As the recovery / realisation of these assets directly related to redemption of zeo coupon NCDs, the Company has offset zero
coupon NCDs with below mentioned assets in balance sheet presentation.

Particulars 31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Zero Coupon NCDs 220.00 220.00
Trade Receivables (40.12) (40.14)
Indirect Tax Recoverable (GST) (72.40) (72.40)
Deferred Tax Asset (107.19) (107.19)
Total 0.29 0.27
Note 22
Non-Current Provisions (X in Millions)
As At As At
Particulars
31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Provision for gratuity 5.93 3.91
Provision for leave encashment 4.40 1:99
| Total non-current provisions 10.33 5.90
Note 23
Current Borrowings (X in Millions)
Particulars RSP aE
31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Current maturities of non-current borrowing, Secured
Term loans from banks (0.17) (0.17)
Short term loan from Related Party 30.00 .
Interest Payable 35.65 -
Other Borrowings
Secured
Working capital facilities 38.98 159.44
Total Current Borrowings 104.46 159.27

* Refer note 42 - Financial Instruments - Fair Value Measurement & Financial Risk Management and * Refer Note 38 for Liability
Schedule

Note 24
Trade payables
[Unsecured, Carried at amorBsed cost, except otherwise stated] (X in Millions)
; As At As At
Particulars
31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024

Total outstanding dues of creditors other th icro enterprises and small

ota oyt tanding due redito an micr erp ma 20510 91475
enterprises
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 135.62 155.45
Total trade payables 340.71 370.20

These amounts represent liabilities for Goods and Services provided to the Company prior to the end of Financial Year which are unpaid.
Trade and Other Payables are presented as Current Liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the Reporting Period.
They are recognised initially at their Fair Value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the Effectivent ethod.

A
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Payable to Related Parties included above. (Refer note 41)




Ratnatris Pharmaceuticals Private Limited
(Formerly known as Ratnamani Healthcare Private Limited)
Notes to Financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025

As at 31st March, 2025

* Ageing schedule is given as a separate note

Trade Payables ageing schedule for the year ended as on 31st March 2025 and 31st March 2024

(X in Millions)

Outstanding For Following periods from Due Date Of Payment

Particulars Unbilled Not Due More than 3
Less than 1 year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years Total
Years
Un-Disputed dues - MSME 2.66 133.09 0.59 ~ 0.14 136.49
Disputed dues - MSME B - - - - -
Un-Disputed dues - Others 5.79 196.56 1.02 8.63 1.43 213.43
Disputed dues - Others - - - - - -
Total 8.46 329.64 1.61 8.63 1.58 349.92
As at 31st March, 2024 (X in Millions)
Outstanding For Following periods from Due Date Of Payment
Particulars Unbilled Not Due More than 3
Less than 1 year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years Total
Years
Un-Disputed dues - MSME - 69.60 70.36 15.35 - 0.14 155.45
Disputed dues - MSME - - - - - - -
Un-Disputed dues - Others - 133.83 70.00 3.31 - 1.38 208.52
Disputed dues - Others 6.23 - - = - - 6.23
Total 6.23 203.43 140.36 18.66 - 1.52 370.20
Note 25
Current Provisions (% in Millions)
Particulars h AL
31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Provision for Gratuity 1.54 1.23
Provision for leave encashment 2.12 0.97
Total current provisions 3.66 2.20

Note 25.1

Provision for employee benefits
The provision for employee benefits includes annual leave and vested long service leave entitlements accrued and compensation claims
made by employees. For other disclosures of post retirement benefit plans, refer note 40.

Note 26
Current Financial Liabilities (% in Millions)
Particulars ALt Aals
31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings - 0.92
Payables for employee benefits 20.08 15.99
Creditors for capital goods 9.21 7.40
Total current liabilities 29.28 24.31




Ratnatris Pharmaceuticals Private Limited
(Formerly known as Ratnamani Healthcare Private Limited)
Notes to Financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025
Note 27
Other current Liabilities (X in Millions),
Particulars A Az
31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Advance from customers 5.26 573
Payables to statutory and other authorities 29.22 5.67
Other current Liabilities 6.42 -
Total Current Liabilities 40.89 11.40
Note 28
Deferred tax Asset/(Liability) (X in Millions)
Particulars ARAL As At
31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Deferred tax assets:
Tax losses 163.55 157.00
Provision for employee benefit expense 5.84 3.69
Expenses allowable on payment basis 3.87 7.60
1| MAT credit entitlement 1.78 1.78
Leases 0.66 0.50
Other comprehensive income ) 0.36 =
Sub-total (A) 176.05 170.57
Deferred tax liabilities:
Property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets 59.42 61.23
Others 0.26 0.30
Sub-total (B) 59.68 61.54
Deferred tax assets / (liabilities) net (C = A - B) _ 116.37 109.03
Less: earmaked against specific borrowing ' - 72.40
Deferred tax assets / (liabilities) net (C- D) : 116.37 36.63
The deferred tax liabilities / assets are off-set, where the company has a legally enforceable right to set-off assets against liabilities, and
are presented in balance sheet as follows:
Under the Income-tax Act, 1961, the Company is liable to pay Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT). MAT paid can be carried forward for a
period of 15 years and can be set off against the future tax liabilities. MAT is recognised as a deferred tax asset only when the asset can
be measured reliably and it is probable that the future economic benefit associated with the asset will be realised.
Opening: 36.63 (3.71)
Recognisedin P & L 79.39 40.60
Closing 116.37 36.63




Ratnatris Pharmaceuticals Private Limited
(Formerly known as Ratnamani Healthcare Private Limited)
Notes to Financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025

Note 29
Revenue from operations (X in Millions)
pstiodlats For the year ended For the year ended
31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Revenue from contract with customers
Revenue from sale of products 1,147.03 953.59
Revenue from services 88.07 51.34
Revenue from sale of Power generated from Windmills 3.18 4.29
1,238.28 1,009.22
Other operating revenues
Income from product registration dossiers 53.72 18.94
Export benefits 9.30 6.86
Sale of scrap 7.79 3.99
Others 24,95 3.56
95.75 33.35
Total revenue from operations 1,334.04 1,042.57
Aote 29.1 (X in Millions)
Bartisiiais For the year ended For the year ended
; 31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Reconciliation of revenue from operations with the contracted price :
Contracted price 1,238.86 1,018.62
Adjustments :
Discounts (0.08)
Sales return (0.57) (9.32)
Revenue from contract with customers 1,238.28 1,009.22
Add : Other operating Income 95.75 33.35
Revenue from operations 1,334.04 1,042.57
Note 29.2 (% in Millions)
particulas For the year ended For the year ended
31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Revenue disaggregation by geography :
Within India 823.08 631.06
Outside India 510.96 411.51
Total 1,334.04 1,042.57
Note 29.3 (% in Millions)
Sariietilats For the year ended For the year ended
31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Sat out below is the amount of revenue recognised from:
Amounts included in contract liabilities at the beginning of the year 5.81
Note 29.4 (% in Millions)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Timing of revenue recognition
Goods transferred at a point in time 1,147.03 §53.59
Services transferred over time P =X\ 91.25 55.63
//3/" Q%“\‘\\\
Total il \‘c,l\ 1,238.28 1,009.22
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Ratnatris Pharmaceuticals Private Limited

(Eormerly known as Ratnamani Healthcare Private Limited)
Notes to Financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025

Note 29.5 (% in Millions)
pavticiilars For the year ended For the year ended
31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Contract liabilities
Advance from customers (REFER note 27) 5.26 5.73
Total 5.26 5.73
Note 30
Other income (X in Millions)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Net foreign exchange gain .73 5.28
Rental Income 0.05 -
Sundry balances written back 2,20 0.01
Provisions no longer required written back 72.40 -
Other non-operating income 0.20 2.42
Total other income 82.58 7.71
Note 31
Finance income (X in Millions)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Interest income
- From fixed deposits 0.10 0.14
- From loans to related parties - 0.34
- From others 0.39 0.35
Total finance income 0.49 0.83
Note 32 .
Cost of materials consumed (X in Millions)

Particulars

For the year ended

For the year ended

31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024

Inventory at the beginning of the year 86.01 85.86
Add: Purchases 792.90 676.72
Less: Inventory at the end of the year 108.17 86.01
Total 770.74 676.57
Purchase of Stock In Trade

Purchase of Stock in trade 39.78 29.08
Purchase of Stock in trade 39.78 29.08
Total Cost of material consumed and Purchase of Stock in Trade 810.53 705.65




Ratnatris Pharmaceuticals Private Limited

(Formerly known as Ratnamani Healthcare Private Limited)
Nates to Financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025

Note 33
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-trade (X in Millions)
For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars
31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Opening Stock :
Finished goods 17.28 32.73
Work-in-progress 50.52 6.71
Total 67.80 39.44
Less:
Closing Stock:
Finished goads (10.34) (17.28)
Work-in-progress (20.10) (50.52)
Total (30.43) (67.80)
-hange in inventories 37.36 (28.36)|
Note 34
Employee benefit expenses (X in Millions)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Salaries and wages 170.99 156.69
Contributions to provident and other Funds 10.14 9.97
Gratuity expenses 1.48 0.85
Staff welfare expenses 6.76 5.78
Total employee benefit expenses 189.37 173.29
Note 35
Finance costs (X in Millions)
Particulars For the year ended

For the year ended

31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Interest on Borrowings 68.59 52.02
Interest on lease 1.29 1.32
Other Interest (including interest on income tax) 0.00 0.01
Unwinding of processing fees of loans 0.17 0.17
Qther Borrowing Costs (includes bank charges, etc.) 1.89 1.541
Total finance costs 71.94 55.04




Ratnatris Pharmaceuticals Private Limited

(Formerly known as Ratnamani Healthcare Private Limited)
Notes to Financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025

Note 36
Other axpenses
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
(A) Repair & Maintenance
- Building 4.68 3.92
- Machinery 14.90 16.35
- Vehicles 1.07 1.23
- Others 3.72 4.38
24.38 25.89
(B) Other
Consumption of stores and spares 0.15 2.37
Power & Fuel 83.40 71.78
Payment to labourers and other processing charges 87.32 64.31
Laboratory expenses 14.62 9.61
Rent 0.78 0.12
Rates, taxes and fees 1.66 0.66
Insurance 3.50 5.57
Travelling and conveyance 7.12 6.54
Communication costs 2.03 199
Printing and stationery 1.96 1.62
Legal and professional expenses 4.76 15.02
Donations 0.47 0.50
Product development expenses 4.07 5.29
Loss on sale of Property, Plant & Equipment - 0.40
Bad debts / advances / sundry balance write off 0.39 0.55
Commission on sales - 0.06
Logistics & distribution expenses 28.26 16.79
Seminar, exhibition and Conference Expenses 5.91 5,42
Other marketing expenses 5.20 2.67
Miscellaneous expenses 10.06 9.52
261.66 220.79
(C) As Statutory Auditors 0.60 0.20
0.60 0.20
Tatal other expenses (A+B+C) 286.64 246.88




Ratnatris Pharmaceuticals Private Limited
(Formerly known as Ratnamani Healthcare Private Limited)
Notes to Financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025

Note 37
Earning per share
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Profit attributable to equity holders for :
Basic earnings 40.56 (119.62)
Adjusted for the effect of dilution 3 2
Weighted average number of equity Shares for:
Basic EPS 37,44,726 24,78,916
Adjusted for the effect of dilution 37,44,726 24,78,916
Earnings Per Share (Rs.):
Basic 10.83 (48.25)
Diluted 10.83 (48.25)
Jote 38
Coviniimeits aid contingencies: For the year ended For the year ended
; 31st March, 20625 31st March, 2024
Commitments:
Estimated amount of contracts remaining unexecuted on capital account (net of y 132
advances) not provided for
- 1.32
Contingent liabilities:
Corporate guarantees given to banks against credit facilities availed by related
parties (Refer note 29) 1,562.00 772.50
Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts : )
Disputed demand of income tax for which appeals before first
appellate autharity have been preferred AY 2021-22 i5gi83 s
Disputed demand of income tax for which appeals before appellate
authority have been preferred AY 2018-19 46.29 46.29
1,767.12 977.62
XI. Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Actuarial Gains and losses 1.30 0.93
Income tax related to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (0.36) -0.26
0.94 0.67
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40

40.1

40.2

Ratnatris Pharmaceuticals Private Limited
(Formerly known as Ratnemani Healthcare Private Limited)
Notes to Financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025

Employee henefits:

Defined Contribution Plan

Contributions are made to Employee Provident Fund (WPF), Employees State Insurance Scheme (ESIC) and other funds which
cavers all regular employees. While both the employees and the Company make predetermined contributions to the Provident
Fund and ESIC and other statutory funds are made only by the Company. The contributions are normally based on a certain
percentage of the employee’s salary. Amount recognised as expense in respect of these defined contribution plans.

Details of amount recognized as expenses during the year: {% in Millions)
aileitais Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Contributian to Provident Fund 7.85 5.86
Contribution to ESIC and Employees Deposit Linked Insurance (EDLI) 1.09 1.03
Contribution to Labour Welfare Fund 0.01 0.01
Total 8.96 6.90
Defined Benefit Plan

The accruing liability on account of retirement benefit plans (in the nature of defined benefits plan) is accounted as per Ind-AS
19 "Employee Benefits".

General description of the plan :

The Company operates a defined benefit plan (the gratuity plan) covering eligible employees, which provides a lump sum
payment to vested employees at retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of employment, of an amount based on the
respective emplovees basic salary and the tenure of emplovment.

Interest risk:
A fall in-the discount rate which is linked to the Government Security Rate will increase the present value of the liability

requiring higher provision. A fall in the discount rate generally increases the mark to market value of the assets depending on)
the duration of asset.

.

Investment risk:
The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate which is determined by reference to

market yields at the end of the reporting year on government bonds. If the return on plan asset is below this rate, it will create
plan deficit.

Longevity risk:
Since the benefits under the plan is not payable for life time and payable till retirement age only, plan does not have anyj
longevity risk.

Salary risk:
The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of members. As such, an
increase in the salary of the members more than assumed level will increase the plan's liability.

(% in Millions)

. As at As at
Earticulars 31st March2025 31 March 2024

(a) Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of the present value of the
defined benefit obligation :
Obligations at the beginning of the year 5.14 5:1%
Current service cost 111 1.41
Interest cost 0.37 0.37
Actuarial (gain) / losses 1.30 (0.93
Benefits paid directly by the employer (0.45) (0.81
Obligations at the end of the year 7.47 5.14
(b) Amount recognized in Balance Sheet

Liability at the end of the period 7.47 5.14
Net Amount recognized in Balance Sheet 7.47 5.14




Ratnatris Pharmaceuticals Private Limited
(Formerly known as Ratnamani Healthcare Private Limited)
Notes to Financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025

40 Employee benefits: (cont..):

(X in Millions)
Year ended Year ended
Part
Biyieulaey 31st March 2025 31 March 2024
(c) Expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss for the year:
Current service cost 311 1.41
Net interest on net defined benefit liability 0.37 0.37
Net gratuity cost 1.48 1.78
(d) Expenses recognised in ather comprehensive income for the year:
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses - Due to Change in Demographic Assumptions - (0.61)
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses - Due to Change in financial assumptions 0.13 0.02
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses - Due to experience adjustments 1.17 (0.34
Total 1.30 {0.93}
(e) Assumptions:
Discount rate* 7.14% 7.31%
Salary escalation rate 8.00% 8.00%
Mortality Rate Indian Assured Lives Mortality 2012-14

(f)

(e)

(Urban).

* The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of government of India securities as at the balance sheet date
for the estimated term of the obligations.

Sensitivity Analysis for each significant actuarial assumption :

The significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligations are discount rate and
expected salary increase. The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of
the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant.

(X in Millions)
. As at As at

paitlans 31stMarch2025 31 March 2024
Impact of increase in discount rate by 1 % (0.21)° (0.13)
Impact of decrease in discount rate by 1 % 0.22 0.14
Impact of increase in salary escalation rate by 1 % 0.22 0.14
Impact of decrease in salary escalation rate by 1 % (0.21) {0.13)
Impact of increase in employee turnover rate by 1 % (0.10) (0.05
Impact of decrease in employee turnover rate by 1 % 0.10 0.05

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligations]
as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions would oceur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may|
be correlated.

Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the defined benefit obligations has been
calculated using the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same as that applied in
calculating the defined benefit obligation liabilitv recoenised in the balance sheet.

Maturity profile :

Projected benefits payable in future years from the date of reporting: (% in Millions)
Undiscounted values Year ended Vear ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
1st following year 1.54 1.23
2nd following year 1.26 0.90
3rd following year 1.19 0.82
4th following year 1.23 0.77
5th following year 1.03 0.69
Sum of Years 6 To 10 : 237 1.58
Sum of Years 11 and above //;'?ﬁm\ 0.64 0.43
e
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42 Financlal Instruments:

Ratnatris Pharmaceuticals Private Limited

(Formerly known as Ratnamani Healthcare Private Limited)
Notes to Financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025

42 Accounting classification and fair values:
Carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy, are presented below.

As at 31 March 2025 (€ in Milliens
Carrying Value Fair Value
Eapailers AtCost _ ALFVIPL __ Amortised Cost Total Level 1 Level 2 Lovel 3 Total
Financial Assets
Investments 0.08 - 3 0.08 - - -
Trade Recelvables = = 43097 430497 - 430.97 430.97
Cash and Cash Equivalents - - 0.25 0.25 - 0.25 0.25
Other Bank Balances = - 1.55 155 - 1.55 1.55
Loans & = - = = - -
Others £ = 2.62 5.62 = 5.62 5.62
Total Financial Assets 0.08 - 438.39 438.47 - 438.39 438.39
Financial Liabilitles
Borrowings = = 806.23 806.23 - 806.23 806.23
Lease Liability = = 13.24 13.24 - 13.24 13.24
Trade Payable - 370.20 370.20 - 370.20 370.20
Others = - 24.31 24.31 = 24.31 2431
Total Financial Liabilities - - 1,213.99 1,213.99 - 1,213.99 1,213.99
As at 31 March 2024 (%in Millions
Particulars Carrying Value Fair Value .
At Cost At FUTPL Amortised Cost Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial Assets
Investments 0.07 - - 0.07 - - -
Trade Receivables = = 362.65 362.65 4 362.65 362.65
Cash and Cash Equivalents = - 0.34 0.34 = 0.34 0.34
Qther Bank Balances - - 1.58 1.58 - 158 1.58
Loans = - 3.00 3.00 - 3.00 3.00
Others - - 5.94 5.94 - 594 5.94
Total Financial Assets <0.07 - 373.50 373,57 - 373.50 373.50
Financial Liabllities J
Borrowings b - BE6.25 886.25 - 886.25 886,25
Lease Liability - - 14.20 14.20 - 14.20 14.20
Trade Payable - - 181.48 181.48 - 181.48 18148
Others = = 22.02 22.02 - 22.02 22,02
Total Financial Liabilities - - 1,103.94 1,103.94 - 1,103.94 1,103.94




Ratnatris Pharmaceuticals Private Limited
(Formerly known as Ratnamani Healthcare Private Limited)
Notes to Financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025

2.1

(i)

i)

(iii]

42.2

{a)

(a1}

Financial Instruments {cont..):

Financial Instrument measured at Amartised Cost:
The carrying amount of financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised cost in the financial statements are reasonable approximation of their fair values since the|
company does not anticipate that the carrying amounts would he significantly different from the values that would eventually be received or settled.

Levels 1,2 and 3

Level 1 : It includes Investment in equity shares and mutual fund that has a quoted price and which are actively traded on the stock exchanges. It is been valued using the closin
price as at the reporting period on the stock exchanges.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques which imise the use of observable market data
and rely as |ittle as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or mare of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in Level 3,
There have been no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the years.

Financial risk management:

The Company’s activities are exposed to variety of financial risks. These risks include market risk (including forelgn exchange risk and interest rate risks), credit risks and ligquidity risk.
The Company’s overall risk management program seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on the financial performance of the Company through established policies and|
processes which are laid down to ascertain the extent of risks, setting appropriate limits, controls, continuous monitaring and its compliance.

Market risk : 5

Market risk refers to the possibility that changes in the market rates may have impact on the Company's profits ar the value of its halding of financial instruments. The Company i
exposed to market risks on account of foreign exchange rates and interast rates,

Foreign currency exchange rate risk :
The Company’s foreign currency risk arises from its foreign currency transactions. The fluctuation in foreign currency exchange rates may have potential impact on the income

staterment and equity, where any transaction references more than ane currency or where assets/liabilities are denaminated in a currency other than the functional currency of the|
Company.

The Company's revanue is partially comes in foreign currency and major part of the costs are in Indian Rupees, any movement in currency rates would have impact on the]
Company's parformance, Consequently, the overall ohjective of the foreign currency risk management is to minimize the short term currency impact on its revenue and cash-flow inj
order to imorove the oredictabilitv of the financial nerformance.

The Following table sets forth information relating to foreign currency exposure from non-derlvative financial instruments:

(% in Millions)
31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Particul
Sy Uso (§) INR (%) Uso 8) INR ()
Assets
Trade receivables 226 193.28 2.06 171.45
Met assets 2.26 193.28 2.06 171.45

Profit or loss is sensitive to higher / lower gain [ loss on foreign currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities as a result of change in fluctuation in forelgn currency exchangel
rate. The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of foreign currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities to a reasanably possible change In foreign currency exchange)
rates, The risk estimates pravided assume a parallel shift of 2% change in exchange rate. This calculation also assumes that the change occurs at the balance sheet date and has
been calculated based on risk exposures outstanding as at that date. The period end balances are not necessarily representative of the average outstanding during the period.

Impact on Profit / (loss} after tax (X In Millions)
Particulars 31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Change in exchange rate by +2% 279 2.48

Change in exchange rate by -2%6 {2.79) {2.48)




Ratnatris Pharmaceuticals Private Limited
(Formerly known as Ratnamani Healthcare Private Limited)
Notes to Financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025

42.2 Financial Instruments {cont..):

(a)

(k)

Interest rate risk :
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company's seeks tg

mitigate such risk by maintaining an adequate propertion of floating and fiked interest rate borrowings. The Company's borrowings are at fixed rate 74.91% 73.46% and 76.35% as
at 315t March 2025, 31st March 2024 and as at31 March 2023 respectively. Summary of financial assets and financial liabilities has been provided helow:

Exposure to interest rate risk
The interest rate profile of the Company's interest - bearing financial instrument as reported to management is as follows:

{% 1n Millions)
As at As at

Particulars 31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Fixed-rate instruments
Financial Assets 1.55 3.05
Financial Liabilities 681.07 -
Variable-rate instruments
Financial Liabilities 230.01 806.23

Interest rate sensitivity

Profit or loss is sensitive to higher/lower interest expense from borrowings as a result of change in interest rates. The follawing table demanstrates the sensitivity of floating rate|
financial instruments to a reasonably possible change in interest rates, The risk estimates provided assume a parallel shift of 100 basis points interest rate across all yield curves. This
calculation also assumes that the change occurs at the balance sheet date and has been calculated based on risk exposures outstanding as at that date. The period end balances are
not necessarily representative of the average debt outstanding during the period.

Impact on Profit/ (loss) after tax : (% in Milllons)
Particulars 31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Increase in 100 basis points (1.66) (5.82)
Decrease in 100 basis points 1.66 5.82
Credit risk :

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss arising fram counterparty fallure to repay or service debt according to the contractual terms or abligations. Credit risk encompasses of hath, the
direct risk of default and the risk of deterioration of creditwarthiness as well as concentration of risks. Financial instruments that are subject to concentrations aof credit risk
materially consists of trade receivables, loans, balances with bank and bank deposits.

All trade receivables are subject to credit risk exposure. The Company's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. The
demographics of the customer, including the default risk of the industry and country, in which the customer operates, also has an influence on credit risk assessment. Credit risk is
managed through established policies, controls relating to credit approvals and procedures for continuously manitoring the creditworthiness of customers to which the Companyf
grants credit terms in the narmal course of business. There are 2 customers amounting to T 187.17 Millions, 2 customers amounting to ¥ 128.90 Millions contributes ta mare than
10 % of outstanding accounts receivable as at 31 March 2025, 31 March 2024 respectively.

Exposure to credit risk
The carrying value of financial assets represents the maximum credit risk. The maximum exposure to credit risk was % 540.72 Millions and % 443.43 Millions as at 31 March 2025 and
31 March 2024 respectively, being the total carrying value of trade receivables, balances with bank, bank deposits, loans and other financial assats.

In respect of financial guarantees provided by the Company to banks/financial institutions, the maximum exposure which the Company is exposed to is the maximum amount which)
the Company would have to pay if the guarantee is called upon. Based on the expectation at the end of the reporting period, the Company cansiders that it is more likely than not|
that such an amount will not be payable under the guarantees provided.
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42.2 Financial Instruments {cont..):

(c) Liquidity risk :
Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or
another financial asset. The objective of liquidity risk management is to maintain sufficient liquidity and ensure that funds are available for use as per requirements. The Company]
generates cash flows from operations ta meet its financial obligations, maintains adequate liquid assets in the form of cash & cash equivalents and has undrawn short term fine o
credits from banks to ensure necessary liquidity.

Cantractual maturities of significant financial liabilities are as below:

As at 31st March 2025 (X In Millions)
Duein Duein Due in Due after Year 5
Parsicitees YearQtol Year1to 2 Year 2to 5 i
Borrowings* 175.34 13.81 39.04 579.14 B807.33
Lease liabilities 251 2.64 6.98 - 12.13
Trade payables 340.71 - - - 340.71
Other financial liabilities 29.28 - - = 29.28
Total 547.85 16.45 46.01 579.14 1,189.46
As at 31st March 2024 (% In Millions)|
Duein Due in Duein Due after Year 5
iiqni YearQtol Year1to2 Year2to5 T
Borrowings* 158.66 1298 31.85 478.57 682,06
Lease liabilities 239 251 223 7.06 14.20
Trade payahles 370.20 - - - 370.20
Other financial liabilities 2431 = - - 24.31
Total ' 555,57 15.49 34.09 485,63 1,090.78

*Excluding amortised cost adjustment and compulsory convertible debentures as it will not create any liquidity risk for the Company.

43 Capital management
The Company's capital management is Intended to create value for shareholders by facilitating the achievement of long-term and short-term goals of the Company.

The Company determines the amount of capital required on the basis of annual business plan coupled with lang-term and short term strategic investment and expansion plans. The|
funding needs are met through equity, cash generated from operations, long-term and short-term bank borrowings and issue of non-convertible debt securities.

The Company monitars the capital structure on the basis of net debt to equity ratio and maturity profile of the overall debt portfolio of the Company. Net debt includes interest
bearing borrewings including lease liabilities less cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances (including non-current earmarked balances).

The table below summarises the capital, net debt and net debt ta equity ratio of the Company.

(X in Millions)
As at As at
Particulars
31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Total Equity (Incl, compulsory convertible debt securities) 59.95 92.75
Adjusted Net Equity (A) 59.95 92.75
Gross Debt (Excl. compulsory convertible debt securitles) G988.86 819.47
Less: Cash and cash equivalents {0.25) (0.34)
Less: Bank balances ather than cash and cash equivalents (1.55) (2.00)
Adjusted Net Debt (B) 987.06 817.13

Net debt to equity ratio (B {A) 16.47 8.81
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44 Ratlo analysis:

Sr, il Year ended Year ended e a i
eas

No. 315t March, 2025 31st March, 2024 s e

{a) CurrentRatio (In times) : Current assets / Current liabilities 131 1.14 15.6% MN.A.

{b) Debt equity ratio [In times) : Total debt / Shareholder's Equity 16.29 8.69 87.4% Refer note (i)

Total deht: Non-current Borrowings + Current Borrowings &
Shareholder's Equity: Equity share capital + Other equity

{c] Debt service coverage ratio (In times) : Profit after tax + Deferred 117 -0.68 -272.5% Refer note (i)
tax + Depreciation and amortisation + Interest on debt and lease /
Interest on debt and lease + Principal repayments of long term debt
including lease payment

(d} Return on Equity Ratio (In %) : Net profit after taxes / Average 53,12% -128.97% -141.2% Refer note (iii)
sharehalder's equity

(e) Inventory turnover (In times); Revenue from sale of products / 7.68 6.20 23.9% Refer note (iv)
Average Inventaries

{f) Debtors turnover (In times): Revenue from contract with customers 3.12 2.78 12.1% N.A.
/ Average trade receivables

{g) Trade payables turnover (In times): Cost of Goods Sold/ Average 2.39 3.66 -34.8% Refer note (v)
trade payables

{h] Net capital turnover ratio: Net Sales/Working Capital 6.99 12.24 -42.8% Refer note (v)
(i) Net profit ratioc (In %): Net Profit/Met Sales d "3.54% -12.54% -128.2% Refer note (vi)
(i) Return on Capital employed (In %): EBIT/Capital Employed B8.15% © B.38% 27.7% Refer note (vii)
(k) Return on investment (In %): Interest Income / Average Ioans. & 3.03% 18.93% -84.0% Refer note {viii)

Time Deposits

Note:

{i) During the year, the Company infused additional borrowings to fund growth and working capital requirements. This has significantly increased total debt while
equity grew moderately. As well as The Company recorded a profit of % 40.56 Millions in the current year versus X 119.62 Million loss in the previous year,
reflecting better operational efficiency and cost control, Which resulting in the heightened debt-to-equity ratio.

{ii) During the year, Net operating income has turned significantly positive, supporting full coverage of interest and principal repayments which leads to
improvement in Debt Service Coverage Ratio

{iii) Due to Positive shift in PAT from a loss to profit, boosting the numerator. Which leads to increase in Return on Equity Ratio.

{iv) During the year there is increase in turnover which leads to Optimized inventory management, inventory movement has become faster and holding period for|
inventary has been reduced. This results into higher Inventory Turnover Ratio.

{v) The decrease in the Trade Payables Turnover Ratio is primarily due toa higher percentage increase in trade payables compared to the increase in cost of
goods sold, indicating slower supplier payments relative to purchases.

{vi) The Net Capital Turnover Ratio has decreased from 12.24 10 6.99 , a change of 42.8%, primarily due to a higher percentage increase in working capital
compared to the increase in net sales. This indicates a less efficient utilization of capital in generating revenue.

(wii)
During the year, Net Profit Ratio has been Increased to 3.54% compared to -12.54%, which shows the company is effectively converting sales inte actual profit,
(viii) During the year, the increase in capital employed, driven by higher long-term borrawings and retalned earnings supporting business expansion and operational
growth, coupled with a higher EBIT compared to the previous year, has led ta an improved Return on Capital Employed (ROCE).

{ix) During the year, there is decrease in return on capital employed which is primarily due to reduced interest income and an increase in loan receivables,
impacting overall returns.
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45 Segment Information:
The chief operational decision maker {CODM) monitors the aperating results of its Business segment separately for the purpose of making decision about
resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on profit or loss and is measured consistently with praofit or
loss in the financial statements, Operating segment have been identified on the basis of nature of products and other quantitative criteria specified in the|
Ind AS 108, Pharmaceuticals business is identified as single operating segment for the purpose of making decision on allocation of resources and assessing]
its performance.

46 Additional Regulatory Information pursuant to the requirement in Division Il of schedule Ill to the Companies Act, 2013:

(i) The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami
property.

(i} The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

(iii) The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

(iv) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(is), including foreign entities {Intermediaries) with the|
understanding that the Intermediary shall: (a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or (b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

{v) The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(is), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether
recorded in writing or atherwise) that the Company shall: (3) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner|
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or (b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate]
Beneficlaries.

(vi) The Company does not have any transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the
year in the tax assessments under the Incame Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

(vii) The Company is not declared as Lvilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution (as defined under the Companiés Act, 2013) or consortium thereof of
other lender in accardance with the guidelines an wilful defaulters issued by the Reserve Bank of India.

viii) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right-of-Use Assets) during the year.

(ix) The Company doesn’t have any co-owned properties or the properties (including properties for which the lease agreement executed and disclosed as
‘Right-of-Use Assets’ in financial statements) for which title deed are held by the others, (except as mentioned note 5 and &)

{x) The Company has not granted any Loans or Advances in the nature of loans to promoters, Directors, KMPs and the related parties (as defined under
Companies Act, 2013), either severally or joiritly with any other person (except disclosed in note 40). :

(xi} The Company has used the borrowings from the banks for its intended purpose during the financial year.

{xii) The Company did not have any transaction with companies struck off under-Section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or Section 560 of Companies Act,
1956 during the current and previous financial year, ;

47 These financial statements were authorised for issuance by the Company's Board of Directors on 12th May, 2025

48 The Indian Parliament has approved the Code on Social Security, 2020 ('Code’) which may impact the contributions made by the Company towards
Provident Fund and Gratuity. The Company will evaluate the impact once the corresponding rules are notified and will give appropriate effect in ther
financial statements in the period in which the Code becomes effective and the related rules are notified.

49 Events occurring after the Balance sheet Date
The Company evaluates events and transactions that accur subsequent to the balance sheet date but prior to approval of the financial statements to
determine the necessity for recognition and/or reporting of any of these events and transactions in the financial statements. As of 14th May, 2025, therg}
are no subsequent events to be recognized or reported.

The accompanying notes are integral part of the financial statements.
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